Minutes



MAJOR Applications Planning Committee

20 November 2019

Meeting held at Committee Room 5 - Civic Centre, High Street, Uxbridge

Meeting held at Committee Room 3 - Civic Centre, Figh Street, Oxbridge	
	Committee Members Present: Councillors Eddie Lavery (Chairman), Ian Edwards (Vice-Chairman), Janet Duncan, Martin Goddard, John Morse, John Oswell, Steve Tuckwell, Henry Higgins and Carol Melvin
	Ward Councillor: Councillor Devi Radia
	LBH Officers Present: Glen Egan (Office Managing Partner - Legal Services), Mandip Malhotra (Strategic and Major Applications Manager), Liz Penny (Democratic Services Officer), James Rodger (Head of Planning, Transportation and Regeneration) and Alan Tilly (Transport, Planning and Development Manager)
74.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)
	There were no apologies for absence.
75.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST IN MATTERS COMING BEFORE THIS MEETING (Agenda Item 2)
	Ward Councillor Devi Radia was in attendance and declared a non-pecuniary interest in item 7 as she was a Governor of Whiteheath Infant School; it was thought the Infant School had been consulted regarding the application. Cllr Radia did not speak on this item but remained in the gallery during the discussion.
76.	TO SIGN AND RECEIVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Agenda Item 3)
	RESOLVED That: the minutes of the meeting dated 16 October 2019 be agreed as an accurate record.
77.	MATTERS THAT HAVE BEEN NOTIFIED IN ADVANCE OR URGENT (Agenda Item 4)
	None.
78.	TO CONFIRM THAT THE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 1 WILL BE CONSIDERED INPUBLIC AND THOSE ITEMS MARKED IN PART 2 WILL BE HEARD IN PRIVATE (Agenda Item 5)

It was confirmed that all items were marked Part I and would be considered in public.

79. WATERCRESS BEDS, SPRING LANE, HAREFIELD - 24597/APP/2018/2373 (Agenda Item 6)

Change of use of site to a camping site (Use Class D2), alteration of existing building to provide visitors' centre, erection of seven camping pods, associated landscaping and car parking with 18 spaces.

Officers introduced the application and noted the addendum which detailed five additional informatives. The Council had attempted to amend the description of the development but the applicant had not agreed to this. An informative had therefore been added to the addendum (no.5) detailing what the LPA considered to be a more accurate description of the development; this was much broader and made mention of two houses and a biomass boiler on the site. Members were informed that the application site lay within Green Belt land and development of the site would result in an increase of built footprint of approximately 127 sqm. The footprint of the visitors' centre would be 328 sqm which was considered to be excessive. It was highlighted that the proposed roof form could potentially accommodate the addition of a first floor in the future. Eight reasons for refusal were highlighted in the officer's report.

A petitioner spoke in objection to the application and highlighted residents' concerns regarding the extremely messy site which was an eyesore. It was believed that no planning permission had been sought for one of the large houses on site, the biomass boiler and the huge pile of wood in situ; this was an additional cause for concern. Residents did not believe that the development would be a genuine camping site. Members were advised that the camping pods had insufficient sleeping areas and no utilities supplying them. Moreover, it appeared that a D2 uncontrolled camping site was being requested which it was feared would potentially resemble a traveller community site. Concerns were raised regarding the resulting noise, waste and loss of rural outlook should the application go ahead.

Members indicated that the proposal was unacceptable for the reasons highlighted. It was noted that non-standard reason for refusal 1 made reference to the impact on the Green Belt. It was agreed that delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning to amend non-standard reason for refusal 1 to ensure accuracy and clarity.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed. It was noted that planning enforcement colleagues would need to ensure thorough consideration of all matters relating to the site.

RESOLVED That:

- 1) the application be refused; and
- 2) authority be delegated to the Head of Planning to re-word non-standard reason for refusal 1 to ensure accuracy and clarity.

80. LAND ADJACENT TO WHITEHEATH JUNIOR SCHOOL, WHITEHEATH AVENUE, RUISLIP - 64510/APP/2019/1412 (Agenda Item 7)

Erection of 4 dwellings with associated parking, new crossover and all external works.

Officers presented the report and highlighted the additional information in the addendum. It was noted that a site visit had taken place on Friday 15 November 2019. Further to the visit, the plan on page 236 of the pack had been superseded and needed to be removed. The tree officer had commented that the planned development would

not have a detrimental impact on the street tree. In relation to the electricity sub-station, a route into the sub-station had been secured which would ensure continuity of service. A condition had been added to stipulate that the materials used would match those of the surrounding residential properties and would not comprise render. Members were advised that overlooking to the school playground would be minimal.

A petitioner spoke in objection to the application. It was stated that the application site had previously formed part of Whiteheath Junior School land. The petitioner commented that school budgets were tight and the proposed development was short-sighted as, at some point in the future, it was likely that the school would need to be expanded further. Residents were concerned that the addition of four houses on a relatively small piece of land would result in over-development of the site. The Committee was informed that there were currently no terraced houses along Whiteheath Avenue therefore the proposed development would not be in keeping with the existing street scene. Moreover, concern was expressed that the proposed dormer windows would be front-facing; this would not be in keeping with the existing houses.

Additional concerns were expressed regarding potential overlooking to the school playground which was a safeguarding concern –the children's safety was of paramount importance. Moreover, it was felt that the proposed development would exacerbate traffic stress in the area, particularly at school drop off / pick up times. A petition had previously been submitted expressing concerns regarding road safety; it was a deadend road and there was little space to turn.

Ward Councillor Devi Radia was in attendance and declared a non-pecuniary interest in this item as she was a Governor of Whiteheath Infant School; it was thought the Infant School had been consulted regarding the application. As a result, Councillor Radia did not speak on this item but remained in the gallery during the discussion.

Members commented that they were concerned regarding the impact of the proposal on the street scene. It was noted that terraced houses were a-typical and not in keeping with the area. Moreover, concerns were raised that the massing to the front would be out of kilter with the rest of the street. It was felt that the impact to number 1 could be considerable; however, it was unclear what the impact of the large wall would be, particularly in relation to overshadowing and sunlight – this was not detailed in the officer's report. Additionally, the Committee was concerned that the use of dormers to the front was not in keeping with the street scene and could set a dangerous precedent.

Councillors noted that the side windows to the first floor were not clearly indicated on the plan on page 240 of the pack. It was stated that windows to habitable rooms were to be of obscure glass but there was no mention of non-openers. Moreover, it was noted that property number 1 as shown on page 235 of the plans pack did not mirror the shape of the buildings on the OS sheet; as a result of this it was suggested that the 45° line indicated could be inaccurate – this was a critical point. Members expressed considerable concern regarding apparent inaccuracies on the plans. Revised plans and a daylight / sunlight report were requested and it was recommended that the item be deferred for further re-consultation. The petitioners were advised that their speaking rights on the petition had been now used, therefore they would need to submit a further petition should they wish to address the Committee again.

A recommendation to defer this item was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED That: the item be deferred for further re-consultation regarding

clarification of plans and a request for a daylight / sunlight report.

81. LAND AT CESSNA ROAD, HEATHROW AIRPORT, HOUNSLOW - 62360/APP/2018/3381 (Agenda Item 8)

Reserved matters (landscaping) pursuant to condition 2 of outline planning permission ref: 62360/APP/2017/3000 dated 27/6/19.

Officers presented the report. Members raised no objections to the proposal.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously approved.

RESOLVED That: the application be approved.

82. UNIT 2-4, AIRPORT GATE BUSINESS CENTRE, BATH ROAD, HEATHROW - 54794/APP/2019/2421 (Agenda Item 9)

Application for the change of use from B1c and B8 to B1c, B2 and B8 for Units 2-4, including the replacement of external cladding and internal alterations to the first floor and alterations to access, car parking layout serving Units 5-7 and landscaping and service yards together with associated works.

Officers presented the report. It was suggested that this was a positive proposal which would cause no adverse harm to the amenity.

Members requested that fire retardant cladding be used. It was noted that fire regulation requirements only applied to residential developments; however, it was suggested that an informative could be included relating to this.

The Committee expressed concerns regarding the pollution caused by HGVs and it was suggested that substantially more electrical vehicle charging points be included. It was noted that regulations regarding car parking standards applied to residential rather than commercial developments; however the Head of Planning agreed to liaise with Val Beale (the LA's Environmental Specialist) in relation to this. Delegated authority was granted to the Head of Planning in negotiation with the Chair and the Labour Lead to agree the final wording of Condition 6.

Members requested clarification regarding the use of the term 'Accessible' car parking. It was confirmed that this term could be used in lieu of 'disabled' or 'Blue Badge' parking. It was agreed that the wording of Condition 7 be revised to ensure clarity.

In respect of Members' concerns regarding noise levels, it was confirmed that the applicant would be bound to comply with the terms of the noise report submitted (Condition 3).

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed subject to the re-wording of Conditions 6 and 7.

RESOLVED That:

- 1) the application be approved;
- 2) Delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning in negotiation with the Chair and Labour Lead to re-word Condition 6 (particularly in relation to the electrical vehicle component); and

3) Delegated authority be granted to the Head of Planning to re-word Condition 7 (in relation to 'accessible' parking) for the purposes of clarity.

83. WORLD BUSINESS CENTRE 5, NEWALL ROAD, HEATHROW AIRPORT - 74351/APP/2018/4098 (Agenda Item 10)

Erection of office building (Outline application with all matters reserved)

Officers presented the report and highlighted the information in the addendum. Members were informed that this was an outline application for the fifth in a series of World Business Centre (WBC) office buildings (Use Class B1) on the southern side of the A4 Bath Road, within the boundary of Heathrow Airport. It was envisaged that this fifth building would be of a similar design to the existing four.

Councillors raised no objections or concerns regarding the proposal.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED That: the application be approved.

84. **51 BELMONT ROAD, UXBRIDGE - 34151/APP/2019/3459** (Agenda Item 11)

Variation to Conditions 1 and 2 of planning application reference 34151/APP/2017/3332 - Change of use from office (Use Class B1) to 14 residential units (Use Class C3) together with ancillary car parking, cycle storage and waste and recycling storage (Prior Approval).

Officers presented the report and highlighted the addendum.

Members commented that this was a tidying up application and noted that disabled car parking spaces had been retained to the rear. It was noted that Recommendation D had been amended in the addendum to state that 'If the Legal Agreements have not been finalised by 18 December 2019, delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning, Regeneration and Transportation to refuse the application....'

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.

RESOLVED That: the application be approved.

85. PACKET BOAT MARINA, PACKET BOAT LANE, COWLEY - 53216/APP/2018/4179 (Agenda Item 12)

Change of use of 25 existing moorings from leisure to residential use, with associated works.

Officers presented the report. Members were advised that the proposed development was considered to be acceptable in principle and with regard to its impact on the character of the area, green belt, amenity, highways, access, security, living conditions, trees and landscaping, waste, flooding, noise, air quality, ecology and contamination. Adequate parking was proposed together with electrical charging points at the site.

Members raised no concerns regarding the application.

The officer's recommendation was moved, seconded and, when put to a vote, unanimously agreed.
RESOLVED That: the application be approved.
ADDENDUM
The meeting, which commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 7.10 pm.

These are the minutes of the above meeting. For more information on any of the resolutions please contact Liz Penny on 01895 250185. Circulation of these minutes is to Councillors, Officers, the Press and Members of the Public.

The public part of this meeting was filmed live on the Council's YouTube Channel to increase transparency in decision-making, however these minutes remain the official and definitive record of proceedings.